ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
April 13, 2004
11: 07 a.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representati ve Dan (Ogg

Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representative Les Gara
Representative Mary Kapsner

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 84
"An Act relating to a curriculum for Al aska history; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 84(EDU) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 551

"An Act relating to the issuance of teacher certificates to and
revocation of teacher certificates of persons convicted of
felony drug offenses and to the issuance of Ilimted teacher
certificates to persons convicted of certain crinmes involving a
m nor and felony drug of fenses."”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 84

SHORT TITLE: ALASKA H STORY CURRI CULUM
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KAPSNER

02/ 07/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 07/ 03 (H EDU, HES, FIN
04/ 13/ 04 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- April 13, 2004



MARJORI E MENZI, Project Director

Al aska Hi story Curricul um Devel opment Program

Al aska Humani ties Forum

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a power point presentation on HB
84 and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

| RA PERVAN, Executive Director

Al aska Humani ties Forum

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a power point presentation to the
commttee, testified in support of HB 84, and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

TI M STEELE, Menber

Anchor age School Board

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 84 and answered
questions fromthe nenbers.

STEVE HAYCOX, Ph.D
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 84.

KEVI N SWEENEY, Legi sl ative Liaison

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 84 and answered questions
fromthe commttee.

BARBARA THOWPSON, Director

Teachi ng and Lear ni ng Support

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 84 and answered questions
fromthe commttee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-18, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R CARL GATTO call ed the House Special Commttee on Education

meeting to order at 11:07 a.m Representatives Gatto, Seaton,
Wlson, QOgg, and Kapsner were present at the call to order.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- April 13, 2004



Representatives WIf and Gara arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 84- ALASKA HI STORY CURRI CULUM

Number 0035

CHAI R GATTO announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 84, "An Act relating to a curriculum for Al aska
hi story; and providing for an effective date."

Number 0043

REPRESENTATI VE MARY KAPSNER, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor, testified on HB 84 and answered questions from the

menbers. She told the nenbers that this bill requires that a
student nust [pass] this Al aska H story course before graduating
from high school. It directs the Departnment of Education and

Early Devel opnent to devel op a standards-based curricul um The
hope is this course would be one of six required social studies
cour ses.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER shared that U S. Senator Ted Stevens has
provided for an appropriation through the Alaska Humanities
Forum which has given the Department of Education and Early
Devel opnent to issue a zero fiscal note on this |egislation.
She told the nenbers that Marjorie Menzi wll be presenting a
power point presentation. Marjorie formerly worked for the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent and now works for
the Alaska Humanities Forum specifically working to get the
Al aska Hi story curriculumin high schools.

Number 0182

MARJORIE MENZI, Project Director, Alaska Hi story Curriculum
Devel opnent Program Al aska Humanities Forum presented a power
point presentation on HB 84 and answered questions from the
menbers. She noted that the presentation is actually being done
jointly with Ira Perman who is on-line from Anchor age.

Number 0229

| RA° PERMAN, Executive Director, Al aska Humanities Forum
presented a power point presentation to the conmttee, testified
in support of HB 84 and answered questions fromthe nenbers. He
told the commttee that Marjorie Menzi, the Project D rector for
the Alaska Hi story Curriculum Developnent Program which is

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- April 13, 2004



developing a course for Alaska history for all Alaska high
school s students. He told the nmenbers that the curricul um would
be presented to the nenbers through the power poi nt
presentati on. M. Perman added that he and Ms. Menzi would be
avai lable to answer questions from the commttee throughout the
presentati on. He said that after the nenbers see the
presentation he hopes HB 84 will be passed out of conmttee with
a "do pass" reconmendati on.

MR. PERMAN rem nded the nenbers that about a nonth and a half
ago during U S. Senator Ted Stevens address to the joint session
of the legislature he said the foll ow ng:

The Al aska Humanities Forum is devel oping a statew de
curriculum in Al askan H story. It is my hope that
this curriculum wll enable future generations to
grasp and preserve what it neans to be 'Al askan'.

Nunmber 0468

MR. PERMAN commented that everyone is aware of the fact that the
state faces unusually difficult fiscal tinmes, but Representative
Kapsner said thanks to Senator Stevens' this bill has a zero a

fiscal note.

MR. PERVAN offered that sone mght question why Alaska history

should be required at this tinme. He explained that there is a
| arge national awareness that denocracy is not self-sufficient.
It nust be taught to every generation. It is inportant for

students to |earn about our history and about our values, and
governnment institutions, so that each generation participates
and continues to be involved. Including this course wll
prepare our students to be know edgeable adults. Shortly after
taking this course the students wll be eligible to vote, he
poi nted out. To be a good voter a person needs to know the
state's history, how the governnent works, cultures, and
geogr aphy. M. Perman enphasized that everyone is concerned
about our future generations and want them to stay in Al aska
If they have a sense of what it neans to be Alaskan, it is nore
likely they will stay here.

Nunmber 0614
MR. PERVAN explained that [the wmap in the power point

presentation shows] how Alaska history is taught across the
state. There are 52 school districts, and for the nbst part

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- April 13, 2004



Al aska history is taught at the elenentary school |evel. Some
school districts teach Alaska history at the high school |[evel
as an elective, he added. In the rural areas of Al aska, Al aska
history is a required course that all students nust take.
However, M. Pernman pointed out that in the highly popul ated
areas such as Anchorage, Fairbanks, Juneau, Sitka, Matanuska-
Susitna, and Kenai areas, if Alaska history is taught it is an

el ective at the high school |evel. He added that very few
students actually take the course. So these students energe
from high school with very little know edge of what Al aska is
all about, he sunmmari zed. He told the nenbers that this bill

would require that every high school student have conpleted a
hi gh school |evel course in Al aska history.

Nunber 0719

MR. PERVAN said that their research shows that of the 50 states
47 require either through state law or regulation that their
hi gh school students take their state's history course. The
| aws al so set the grade |evel at which the course nust be taken,
he added. Another interesting point that was discovered is that
nost states require that students take the course nultiple
tinmes, for exanple at the elenentary |evel, the secondary | evel
and again at the high school |[evel. There is a big difference
in what is taught. At the elenentary |evel the teacher may pose
the questions, "Do you know that you have a permanent fund? Do
you know that you will receive a check? Do you know how nuch it
is?" Then the question is: "Do you know where it cones fron?"
At the high school level the questions would be sonething like,
"How did the permanent fund come to be?" This would bring into
question Alaska's political process and how the state works. He
summari zed that Al aska History at the high school |evel is going
to be far nore in-depth.

Number 0865

MR. PERVAN told the nenbers that the good news about this
| egislation is that there will be no cost to the state. The
fundi ng has been provided by Senator Stevens. It was determ ned
a couple of years ago that there just wasn't enough noney in the
state's budget to nmke an effort |ike this happen. Senat or

Stevens made it his mssion to ensure that noney did not stand
in the way of making this happen. Al the costs associated with

putting this in place was in the president's budget and will be
adm ni stered through the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent . The course is under devel opnent now. Marjorie
Menzi who is the project director will give a brief summry on

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- April 13, 2004



the status of its developnent. The funds have been provided for
the classroom materials and teacher training.

Nunber 0992

M5. MENZI explained that the course is a web-based curriculum
not a distance-delivered curriculum This course wll be using
the web as resource nmaterial, but it will be produced on a CD,
and there will be one for every student and teacher in the
state. There will also be a printed teacher's guide with the
| essons and activities that will be on the CD There will be

st andar di zed student assessnent to ensure that the students have
| ear ned.

Nunber 1190

M5. MENZI told the nmenbers that there is a 28-nmenber committee
of primarily educators and comunity |eaders from around the
state who have directed the devel opnent of the course. These
i ndi viduals have identified the six main narratives thenes that
will be the basis of the course. Chronology wll be an
inportant part as it relates to world history. It was also
decided that regional history will be included because of the
rich regional history that has already been devel oped by | ocal
school districts.

M5. MENZI explained that the conmttee will identify essential
guestions and enduring understandi ngs that students should have
as a result of taking this course. The six thenmes that are

bei ng devel oped are geography, cultures, Russian period, the
early Anerican period, governnment or statehood governance, and
post statehood and current events. She told the nenbers that
all of the authors are affiliated with the University of Al aska
as follows:

Geography - Dr. Roger Pearson

Cul tures - Paul Ongtooguk

Russian Period - Dr. Steve Haycox

Early Anerican Period - Jo Antonson

Governnment - Dr. Terrance Col e

Post Statehood/ Current Events - Dr. Steve Haycox

M5. MENZI told the nenbers that all of the main narratives are

currently being worked on. Because this is a web-based
curriculumit wll be possible to incorporate primry docunents
from the Virtual Library and Digital Archives (VILDA) from the
Al aska state historical |ibrary. The University of Al aska

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- April 13, 2004



Fai r banks has been working on what is called the "Juke Box"
project which is an oral history collection and which will also
be available for the class. M. Menzi shared that there will be
a section on biographies. Many of our history nakers are still
alive and there is a great effort to capture their retrospective
t houghts on what they lived through. That will also be included
in the curriculumthrough the Juke Box project.

Nunmber 1345

M5. MENZI shared that another special feature avail able through
the class is a wvirtual field trips. There are many site
currently up and filled with information, so by gqguiding the
students through these wvirtual field trips it wll enable
students to experience a lot of Al aska that they mght not be
able to visit. As the former Director of the Alaska Cose Up

Program she becane aware of the fact that so many of the
students from Northern Al aska had no idea what Southeast Al aska
was |ike, and students from Southeast Al aska had no idea what
Nort hern Al aska was |ike. In the 1980s it was her experience
that nost of the students had no idea what the Capitol was |ike
and what happened there. Virtual field trips wll enable the
students to experience historical nmonunents and | andmarks around
the state, she said. She enphasized that because this is a web-

based course students wll be able to visit sites like the
Al skool site on Alaska Native cultures, the oral history sites,
and governnment sites. She explained that the course wll

| argely use public domain sites because it is very expensive to
get copy wite permssions for private materi al s.

Number 1450

M5. MENZI said that a special assessnent tool called the
cul mnating project. This was inplemented by the National
Hi story Day program which encourages students to develop a
culmnating project in their studies. For exanple, the student

could either do an exhibit, performance, paper, or docunentary
which denonstrates the know edge obtained through Al aska
hi story, she comrented. There have been students in Al aska who
have been recognized in National H story Day conpetition for
their contributions and have been published in national history
j ournal s.

M5. MENZI told the nenbers that the conmttee is working with
Lucid Reverie LLC in developing a site. Many ot her state node
curriculums were studied to determne what inportant feature
should be on the site. Sone of the things that were identified

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- April 13, 2004



were the historical tineline. The dates used will be the sane
as those used by the library to do their VILDA project so the
timelines will be in sync. She enphasized that there is an
effort to work collaboratively with anything that mght have
input into this project. For exanple, the project is
col |l aborating with the nuseum in Anchorage which is currently
doing arts curriculumon-line and it will be incorporated in the
hi story curriculum she said.

Nunmber 1658

M5. MENZI provided a brief visual overview of the site to the
menbers. [The CD is available through Al aska History Curricul um
Devel opnent Program Al aska Humanities Forum the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent. ] She enphasized that funding
for teacher training was al so provided by Senator Stevens. This
sutmer 30 teachers will be trained at UAA, wll then pilot the
course, it will be revised to address what does and does not
work in the classroons.

Nunber 1801

CHAIR GATTO announced for the record that Representative Gara
has been in the neeting for the entire presentation.

Number 1810
REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER told the nenbers that this bill has
w despread support throughout the state. She said that the

foll owi ng groups are in support of this |egislation:

Commonweal th North

Humani ties Forum

Al aska Hi storical Comm ssion
Anchor age Chanber of Commerce

Al aska Equal Ri ghts Commi ssion
Cl Rl Foundati on

Al aska Resource Devel opnent Counci
Former governors

Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on

Al aska Associ ation of School Adm nistrators
Al aska Muni ci pal League

Al aska CGeogr aphi ¢ Soci ety

Pal mer Historical Society

AFN

First Al askans Foundati on

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER pointed to the many supportive newspaper
editorials that have been included in the nmenbers' packets.

CHAIR GATTO asked if there are any organi zed groups that oppose
HB 84.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER replied not to her know edge.
Nunmber 1868

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON conplinmented Ms. Menzi on her efforts and
ent husiasm for this project.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if the courses currently taught in
Anchorage are the sane as those that woul d be taught statew de.

Number 1903

M5. MENZI conmented that the Anchorage School District adopted a
requirenment for a senester course in Alaska history |ast year.
The project is working very closely with them She noted that
the Anchorage School District is doing a training this sunmer
for their teachers which is separate from the training we wll
be providing. She enphasi zed that the courses are being merged
and next year everything will be in sync. The course the
project will provide will be on CD

CHAI R GATTO asked how t he student uses the CD.
M5. MENZI responded that it is used just like a textbook.
CHAI R GATTO comrented that the student nmust have a conputer.

M5. MENZI pointed out that if the teacher has one conputer in
her classroom he/she could use it as has been done here in the

comittee room It is also possible to print out the portions
of the CD and give reading assignnments. The CD s can be taken
hone, used at the library, or conputer I abs. She noted that
this will be an innovation. She said that the Departnent of

Education and Early Developnment can confirm this, but she
believes 98-99 percent of Al askan students have access to a
conput er and I nternet connection.

CHAIR GATTO added that in Rural Alaska in sone cases there are
14 students in a class and all are issued a |laptop conputer for
cl assroom use. He asked if Anchorage adopted this requirenent
on its own without a state |aw.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- April 13, 2004



M5. MENZI replied that is correct. The Anchorage School Board
adopted this requirenent.

CHAIR GATTO asked if there is sone justification for inposing
this class rather than allowing school districts consider and
adopt this requirenent.

M5. MENZI replied that there are sone districts that have been
reluctant to adopt it. Anchorage's |eadership wll be
significant in ternms of |ocal adoption, but there are students
who are not getting this. She shared that five of her children
went to Juneau Douglas Hi gh School, and none of them are in the
state. They each graduated from college and are all 1living
el sewhere, she commented. She said she believes it is inportant
for students to study their state and realize how uni que Al aska
iS.

Number 2133

MR. PERMAN commented that nost school districts sinply did not
have the resources to put this course in place. It is expensive
to develop a course, train teachers, and provide materials for
t he course work. He enphasi zed that he has not encountered any
school districts that have phil osophical opposition to this. A
poll a few years ago asked if it was believed that Al askan high
school students should learn Alaska history and the result was
that 91 percent said yes.

CHAIR GATTO told M. Perman that he is not opposed to the bill,
but has sone further questions. In reference to the poll, he
said he believes that there would be a positive result of 91
percent to teach nost subjects.

MR. PERMAN replied that the phrasing of the question was "should
Al aska history be required to be taught to every high school
student in Al aska." Even though it was a requirenent or
mandate, the margin was still two to one in favor of having that
course taught to Al aska high school students, he said.

CHAI R GATTO questioned what the response would be if the public
were asked which class of electives should be deleted so that
the student can be taught Al aska history.

MR. PERVMAN responded that the sane question canme up in

Anchorage. He commented that the state requires that there be 6
senesters in social studies and many of those are electives. He

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- April 13, 2004



admtted that having this course as a requirenment would renove
the opportunity for students to take one of those electives.
M. Perman said that school districts have different electives.
In Anchorage there are 49 possible electives. He said that he
believes the |local school districts wll have to nmake the
deci si on about what el ective m ght not be taught.

CHAI R GATTO used a hypothetical exanple of Ms. Menzi's children
who went to college. If they applied to college with a third
year of math or two years of nmath and one year of Alaska
Hi story; would the absence of a third year of math dimnish the
nunber of colleges that m ght have accepted them he asked. I n
other words, he questioned whether the students would be
penal i zed for taking Al aska history and elimnating a chance for
the students to take a third year of math.

Nunmber 2368

M5. MENZI conmented that since the students are already required
by the state to take six credits in social studies to graduate,
this course would not be taking away a course of study the
student could take. It is just part of the existing social
studi es requi renent, she enphasized. It is just that the state
does not current dictate what any of those six senester nust be,
she added.

Nunber 2474

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON shared that he had received e-mails from
the school districts he represents. The response from Sam
Stewart of the Kenai Peninsula School District indicated that
this change will nean that nost schools will not be offering any
social studies electives. He said it is interesting to note

that in districts that offer Al aska history the course is not
taken very much because other courses are considered to be nore
i nportant by the students.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the other response he received back
from Ron Keffler, principal of Homer H gh School, indicated that
he would prefer not to have this be a requirenent at this tine
because the school is still suffering staff cuts. The school's
ability to apply sufficient and appropriate el ective courses has
al ready been dimnished severely and this would exacerbate the
pr obl em Anot her concern is that the social studies teachers
that would have to teach the <course are already fully
subscri bed. Representative Seaton asked Ms. Menzi if sone of

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- April 13, 2004



the schools social studies prograns would have to drop courses
in order to offer this one.

Nunber 2574

M5. MENZI replied that nost school districts offer or require
one year of Anmerican History, one year of Wrld Hstory, and
sone have a requirenent for a senmester of governnent. In the
Anchorage School District four credits social studies are
required, rather than three. Anchorage also requires a senester
of econom cs and Al aska studies. A survey was done a nunber of
years ago which found the nobst comonly offered courses in
social studies were economcs, governnent, and Al aska studies.
One of the great things about this programis that it provides

for teacher training. Even though all teachers nust take an
Al aska history course for certification, many do not feel
confortable to teach it. The opportunity for nore intensive

training is sonmething the teachers wel cone, she added.
Nunber 2647

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON clarified that what Ms. Menzi is saying is
if a school district has a six senester requirenent, and
required courses include one year of American history, one year
of world history, one senester of econom cs and one senester of
governnent; then one of these courses will have to be dropped.

M5. MENZI replied that the Alaska history that is being put
forth has a governnent conponent. Governnent is also covered in
Anerican history as well, she added. She enphasi zed her beli ef
that it is inportant for students to know the history of the
state where they live.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the conmttee that he thinks it is

great that there is a curriculum being developed that wll be
available to the districts, but expl ai ned that he is
unconfortable dictating to the districts on this point. He

noted that it appears many of the rural districts do not have
the options for as nmany electives. He said he is not sure that
i nposing this course on the other districts nmakes sense.

M5. MENZI commented that the bulk of the population is in the
urban areas and is not being offered. That is of course is with
the exception of Anchorage which has 43 percent of the student
popul ati on.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said that the nine school districts that
do not require Al aska hi story are Chat ham Chugach

Delta/ Greel ey, Denali Borough, Fairbanks North Star Borough,
I ditarod Area, Juneau, Sitka, and Unal aska. She conmment ed that
she is the only nmenber of the commttee who was required to take
an Al aska history course. Representati ve Kapsner said she
graduated from the Lower-Kuskokwi m School District and was very
surprised when she |earned that other schools do not require it.
She said she is surprised when neeting other Al askans and finds
that they do not know that nuch about the state in which they
live. Representative Kapsner added that this topic has been the

subject of discussion for nmany Vyears. Senator Hensl ey
introduced a resolution in the early 1980s urging an Al aska
hi story course. Even after the resolution passed, few school

districts heeded that resol ution.
Nunmber 2846

REPRESENTATI VE GARA commented that he believes there are many
reasons this bill is inportant. A lot of flexibility has been
taken away from schools because of the standardized testing
requirenents.

The comm ttee took an at-ease from11:53 a.m to 11:54 a.m
Nunmber 2879

REPRESENTATI VE GARA pointed out that wth the exception of
Anchorage, the areas where kids are not |earning Al aska history
are urban areas. He added that these are areas where nost of
the popul ation does not grow up in Al aska. W thout requiring
that Al aska history be taught nobst of these children will not
have the benefit of l|learning about it. Representative Gara said
he believes these kids are the ones who are nost in need of
having pride in where they are from He told the nenbers that
there are 25 co-sponsors of this bill, which he believes is nore
than al nost any other bill before the |egislature this year.

TAPE 04-18, SIDE B

Nunber 2955

REPRESENTATI VE GARA acknow edged Representative Seaton's concern
that there is only so nuch class time, but said he believes the
need for it rests on its nerits. He corrected his earlier

statenent that there are 25 co-sponsor, there are actually 29
CO- Sponsors.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noted that there could be other reasons
why schools do not teach Al aska history. For exanple, she
shared that when she grew up 40 sone years ago in lowa, |owa
studies was a required course. She commented that she cannot
remenber a single thing that she learned in that class. The
advantage Alaska has is an incredible curriculum that al npst
anyone could teach. Representative WIson comented that a
couple of years ago when this issue canme up many schools did not
want it because it was an unfunded mandate. Now the fundi ng has

been provided. She summarized her comments by saying that
| egi sl ators should be doing all they can to ensure that sone of
Al aska's kids conme back to Al aska. This course could be a
start.

Nunber 2850

CHAI R GATTO asked Ms. Menzi if Alaska history is taught in 4th
grade, U S. history in 5th grade, and world history in 6th
gr ade.

Number 2832

M5. MENZI replied yes, that is conmmonly done. It is taught in a
cursory fashion because the students are not developnentally
able to deal with very conplex thought processes in terns of
i ssues such as the permanent fund. As high schoolers they are
much nore mature |earners and they have the ability to grasp
conpl ex concepts, she added.

CHAI R GATTO asked if Ms. Menzi woul d suggest deleting the course
fromthe elenmentary curricul um

M5. MENZI responded absolutely not. She commented that nany
states require their state's history be taught two or three
times, elenentary, mddle school, and high school |evel.

Number 2745

TI M STEELE, Menber, Anchorage School Board, testified in support
of HB 84 and answered questions fromthe nmenbers. The Anchorage
School Board believes that every student graduating from high
school should have a denonstrabl e know edge of Al aska's history,
he said. He commented that there is a reason why 47 states have

this requirenent. Al aska needs it nore than others because we
have a rich broad history. He said whenever traveling to the
Lower 48 states people are very intrigued with Al aska. M.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- April 13, 2004



Steele said he believes we need to be good anbassadors for
Al aska.

MR. STEELE told the nenbers that the Anchorage School District
is working very closely with the Alaska Humanities Forum The
requi renment for conpletion of an Al aska history course goes into
effect this year, he added. He urged support of HB 84.

Nunber 2670

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked M. Steele to respond to the question
concerning the effect of requiring this course which would
renove an option for an additional elective course.

Nunber 2647

MR. STEELE responded that it was a big issue, particularly for
students who are high achieving students or advanced placenent
students that wanted to take extra | anguage or math courses. He
said that he believes those students wll take extra classes
anyway. The school board felt that it was overwhelmngly
obvi ous that students need to have a common under standi ng of our
state. So many conme from sonmewhere el se, he added.

CHAI R GATTO asked if this was a school board decision and asked
what the vote was.

MR. STEELE responded that the vote was 7-0 in favor of requiring
t he course.

Nunber 2601

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Steele if he believes if the
state had nmade the decision and dictated the requirenment of the
course if it would have created a different reaction within the
comunity.

MR. STEELE acknow edged that it probably would have been a "burr
under our saddle" to be told to do it. When exam ning the
rationale, it is found to be a good rationale, he said. He said
he believes it is inportant to have common standards thoughout
the state. The materials that are being developed w Il nake
this a huge resource to the schools.

Nunber 2531

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- April 13, 2004



STEVE HAYCOX, Ph.D. testified in support of HB 84. He told the
commttee he is a fornmer history professor at the University of
Al aska, and has been published by University of Wshington
Press, and was the Chair of the Al aska Humanities Forum when
this initiative was adopted to work for this requirenent. He
coomented that his wife teaches honors world history in Wst
H gh School and is one of ten teachers |ast year who taught the
Al aska studies pilot course at West H gh School. She currently
is currently in Kotlik with four West H gh School students who
wi |l be spending the week going to school there.

Nunber 2456

DR. HAYCOX pointed out that a certain nunber of |anguage arts,
mat h, and science credits are nmandated statew de. He said he
believes it is inportant to be confortable wi th nmandati ng Al aska
history in understanding where and who we are. Dr. Haycox
shared that the devel opnental issue is inportant. One question
that needs to be answered by the students is "so what". \Wat is
i nportant about Al aska history. For exanple, he said that
Ernest G uening was governor of Al aska. It is inportant for

students to know that he dedicated hinself to getting Al aska
admtted in the union as a state. He agreed with Ms. Menzi that
the developnental track is significant and repetition 1is
important, but not just repetition, it is taking it to a deeper
under st andi ng each tinme the student is exposed to it.

DR. HAYCOX commented on Representative Seaton's concern by
saying that in the Anchorage School Districts students still
have a free elective even wth the new Al aska history

requi renent. He enphasi zed that the school board | ooked closely
at this issue and satisfied those concerns that the course could
be required and still ensure a free elective.

DR. HAYCOCK agreed wth Representative Gara that this is an
essential course. For exanple, kids going to Service Hgh
School have no idea who Robert Service was, or kids going to
Bartlett Hi gh School have no idea who Bob Bartlett was.

Nunber 2152

MR. PERVAN added an observation that his daughter graduated from
West High School w thout taking the Al aska studies course. She
did have the opportunity spend time in Rural Alaska and at
cul ture canps. He explained that when applying for college the
transcripts were sent that told how many advance placenent (AP)
courses were taken. He asked if it wll disadvantage his

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- April 13, 2004



daughter if she has |less AP courses than another student. The
answer is no. What the colleges ook for is that the students

took as nmany as possible to take. So a student in a rural
school district that does not offer AP courses is rated as
highly as a student wth five AP courses. She wused the

opportunity of her essay to wite about Al aska and what she
| earned about the two or three weeks she spent in snall
community. That was the one thing in her application that nade

it possible for her to get into a very fine school. By havi ng
that understanding of what it nmeans to be an Al askan, she is a
little unique and grounded. He believes she will come back to

Al aska, contribute to the state, and not just wander off to sone
ot her state.

Nunber 1932

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON comrented that of the six school districts
she represents four already have Alaska history in their
curriculum and of the school districts that do not currently
teach it, none of them responded negatively to including this
cour se.

CHAIR GATTO commented that the question that needs to be
answered is if nost of the districts already have the course,
should the requirenent be inposed upon those school districts
that do not.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON replied that if this was an unfunded
mandat e she probably would not support it, but because there is
no cost to the schools, she believes it is a good for the
students to |l earn Al aska history.

CHAIR GATTO pointed out that the program wll be available
anyway. It sinply nmeans that it will be up to the schools to
adopt the course of study or not. He said he doesn't believe
anyone objects to teaching Al aska history, but he questioned
whet her the |ocal school districts should decide what is in the
best interest of their students, rather than the |egislature.

Nunber 1820

REPRESENTATI VE GARA acknowl edged that the state does nmandate
courses that wll be taken. There is a conpelling case that
Al aska history should be part of the fabric that forns the
educati onal system Just the fact that nobst school districts
have adopted Alaska history courses shows that they are
sensitive to its inportance, he added.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GARA shared that he grew up in New York where its
history was really colonial history that was not unlike that of
Vernmont, New Jersey and Massachusetts because they are all
connect ed. He pointed out that Al aska has a uniquely different
hi story than any other state. There are cultures in this state

that have been here for thousands of years. He commented that
there is a huge transient population in Alaska and it is
inportant for those students to know about their state. He

shared that he just conplete a book entitle Edge of No Where by
Jimry Huntington which talked about the Huntington famly's
experience in Alaska at the turn of the century. It was
fascinating, he said. Representative Gara reiterated the
course's inportance and urged the nenbers to pass HB 84.

Number 1540

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the nenbers that he is fully in
support of the developnment of this curriculum He has concerns
as were expressed by the Kenai Peninsula School District and the
Homer Hi gh School as to what will have to be elimnated to
acconplish this mandate. He pointed out that he believes the
Anchorage School District's |ocal decision-nmaking process was an
important elenent in requiring Al aska history in its curriculum
There is a very big difference between what happened in
Anchorage and a state nandate to |ocal communities who have not

bought into this proposal. He enphasized that a |ocal process
in adopting this course is essential. Representative Seaton
told the nenbers that he supports the bill but would like to

of fer an anendnent.

CHAIR GATTO asked for Representative Seaton to hold his
anendnent until the nenbers concl ude their discussions.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he believes that this is a great

curricul um Once it is offered to districts, there wll be
di scussions and he believes there wll buy-in to the idea of
including Alaska history in their curriculuns. He sunmari zed

that he is only unconfortable with the mandated portion of the
bill.

CHAI R GATTO conmented that Representative Gara pointed out that
there are 29 co-sponsors of HB 84. He asked Representative
Kapsner if she believes if a mpjority of the nenbers wants
sonething then it should be forced upon the mnority.

Number 1377

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER responded that is an unfair question.
She said that if there is majority support for a bill it should
go to the floor for a vote. That is done every day, she added.

CHAI R GATTO agreed that the bill will go to the floor, but his
question is really about districts which Representative Seaton

represents that do not want the bill. He commented that he
finds it ironic. There is a fairness question as to whether
districts who do not want to include this course will be forced
to doit.

Nunber 1320

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER sai d she sees that in many state statutes
NOWw. Not just in education but in nmany other aspects of |aw
The | egislature conmes together to decide what is in the conmon
good's interest, and although it mght not be convenient for
everyone, there is agreenent that sonething is in the best
interest of our state or comunity.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA commented that he recently support a very
good bill by Chair Gatto that required carbon nonoxi de detectors
in homes. There was a minority of people that did not want that
to be a mandate and it was deci ded the benefits far out weighted
the detrinents. He said he thinks HB 84 is another exanple of
the benefits far out weighing the detrinents.

Nunber 1194

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Amendnent 1, which reads as
fol | ows:

Page 2, line 7
Del ete "shal I"
I nsert "may"

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the committee that this anmendnment
retains the provision that the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent shall develop a standard based Al aska [history]
curriculum and each school board nmay inplenment the curriculumin
their cl assroons. He summarized that the only change is that
the school districts will nake the determnation within their
own districts as to whether it inplenents this course.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- April 13, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked where the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent stands on this bill

Nunmber 1096

KEVI N SWEENEY, Legislative Liaison, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent, testified on HB
84 and answered questions from the committee. He told the
menbers that this issue has been before the current Board of
Education three tines in the last year. This bill would require
the board to do an activity that the board al ready has the power
to do. |If the board wanted to mandate Al aska history as part of
the required curriculum the board could do that w thout HB 84.
The board received the sane presentation from the Al aska
Humanities Forum in March. The board is taking sonme tine to
consider whether this is something it wi shes to nmandate as a
graduation requirenent. M. Sweeney summarized that the board
has not taken an official position on this issue yet. He added
that the presentation was well received, but it has not taken
action yet. M. Sweeney comrented that he did not know if this
i ssue woul d be taken up at the June board neeting.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said that it was her understanding that
this i ssue woul d be taken up at the Septenber board neeting.

MR. SWEENEY replied that he is not sure if the board wll be

addressing this in Septenber. The board has not taken a
position against the bill whatsoever, it is looking at the
issue, he said. M. Sweeney clarified that it would be odd for
the board to support a bill that has the legislature telling

themto do what it already has the power to do.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the amendnent would restrict the
Board of Education's ability to nmandate the <course as a
requi renent for graduation

MR. SWEENEY said if the amendnent passed he is not sure what the
effect of the bill would be. He reiterated that the board woul d
still have the power to nandate Al aska history as a requirenent
of graduati on.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if M. Sweeney knows what percentage
of teachers nove to Al aska from out of state.

Number 0796

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 20- April 13, 2004



MR. SWEENEY replied that nost teachers are not from Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked M. Sweeney if he believes it would
serve Al askan students well to have their teachers know and
under stand Al aska history.

MR. SWEENEY commented that he is not an educator and asked for
Bar bara Thonpson to respond to that questions.

CHAIR GATTO asked for clarification of Representative @Gra's
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said he is wondering if by mandating Al aska
history if a side benefit of the bill would be that the teachers
woul d al so understand Al aska's history.

CHAI R GATTO conmented that he wonders if a teacher could teach
Al aska history wthout ever taking a class in Al aska history.
He asked Ms. Thonpson how many teachers cone from outside of
Al aska to teach

Number 0564

BARBARA THOWSON, Director, Teaching and Learning Support,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent, testified on HB
84 and answered questions fromthe commttee. M. Thonpson said
that her best guess is that 70 percent of the teachers hired in
Al aska conme from out of state. The current institutions in
state do not have the capacity to educate enough teachers.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked if teachers are required to take an
Al aska history class before being certified.

M5. THOWPSON agreed with Representative WI son. Teachers are
required to take two courses, Al aska history or Al aska studies,
and rmulti-cultural education.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER clarified that it is her wunderstanding
that new teachers to the state have up to three years to take
those courses, so a teacher could be teaching three years
wi t hout taking those courses.

M5. THOWPSON responded that it depends wupon the type of

certificate a teacher is working under. New teachers have
probably already taken those courses right out of preparation
pr ogr ans. If a teacher cones from out of state with a limted

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -21- April 13, 2004



certificate there is a one to two year tine period to take those
courses and receive a regular type A teaching certificate.

Nunmber 0507

CHAIR GATTO asked if these courses are part of continuing
education courses required to retain a teaching certificate.

M5. THOVPSON replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if those two classes would be
adequate training to teach the Alaska history or Alaska studies
cl asses.

M5. THOWPSON responded that there is really only one class
related to Alaska studies or Alaska history that teachers are
required to take. The other class is a nulti-cultural studies
cour se. She commented that after taking one course in Al aska
studies that a teacher would be prepared to teach Al aska
st udi es.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned if this is inplenented as a
mandated part of the curriculum would the teachers who teach
this course be required to obtain additional education.

Number 0400

M5. THOWSON replied that would depend on the teacher
Addi ti onal teaching strategies may be needed by sone teachers.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rephrased his question by asking if the 70
percent of teachers who conme to Al aska take the Al aska history
or Alaska studies course and the nulti-cultural studies course
have enough preparation to teach the course in Al aska history.

M5. THOWPSON replied it would depend upon the teacher. She
rem nded the nenbers that the current No Child Left Behind Act
(NCLB) requires that teachers be highly qualified in the subject
with which they teach. So a history teacher would have to be
hi ghly qualifi ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if a teacher who is highly qualified
to teach world history or Anmerican history also be highly
qualified to teach this course.

Nunber 0278

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -22- April 13, 2004



MR. SVEENEY responded that NCLB would only require a teacher to

be highly qualified in social studies. It would not even be so
in depth as to require a teacher be highly qualified in just
hi story. He added that the funding for teacher education is
i ncl uded. Right now a pilot program is being done with 30
teachers, and next year it wll be done wth 300 teachers. He
commented that there is the recognition that there wll be extra

training required, which is built into the concept of the
cour se.

Nunmber 0224

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said he graduated from the Kenai Peninsula
School District 25 years ago. At that tine Alaska and | ocal
hi story was taught. A great deal of it was shared through

storytelling and nmentorship fromlocal comrunity nenbers.

CHAIR GATTO asked if Representative WIf is saying he would
prefer to have a |ocal history course taught rather than history
of the entire state.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said his primary concern lies with mandating
the course so he will be supporting Anendnent 1.

TAPE 04-19, SIDE A
Number 0050

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER told the nmenbers that Anmendnent 1 would
gut HB 84. She asked Ms. Menzi to speak to local input wth
respect to the course.

M5. MENZI told the nmenbers that a survey was done in the fall of
all of the school districts and asked them to identify the
materials developed locally and regionally that mght be
incorporated into the course. When the design for the course
was done there was an icon for regional history, so students
will be able to access information on specific regions of the
state, she explained. She said that there was a fair response,
but hopes as tinme goes on nore and nore information wll be
added. Since the course is on CD it will be possible to add
nore information as it becomes avail abl e.

CHAIR CGATTO asked if there are experiences with CDs as a
| ear ni ng t ool

Number 0187

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -23- April 13, 2004



M5. MENZI responded that there is experience in this area. For
exanple, she said she was involved in the CD that was on the
retracing of the Harriman Expedition in 2001. That CD was nade
available to every school district in the state. It provide
hi st ori cal information on the voyage 100 years ago and
informati on on sonme of the contenporary voyage.

CHAIR GATTO asked if there is experience in using CDs the way
this CDis intended to be used.

M5. MENZI responded that is a new concept. D stance delivered
education has been going on for sone tinme, but the idea of CDs
as the base curriculumis cutting edge, she said. She said that
it is beginning to be done nationw de because textbooks are so
expensi ve. Ms. Menzi acknow edged that this is an experinent.
Not hing like this has been done in Al aska before.

CHAI R GATTO commented that he wi shes that there was some record
of this being successful. He said that he foresees a tine when
it my be necessary to use distance delivery to have a highly
qgual i fied teacher somewhere with everyone connecti ng.

M5. MENZI replied that she would be happy to research that
subject and provide her findings to the nenbers. One of the
nodels used for this website is Nebraska's studies which has
been doing sonme of there social studies education through this
website.

Nunmber 0438

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if other states' teachers have had
difficulty teaching the cl asses.

M5. MENZI responded that a social studies teacher would not have
difficulty because they have had a |ot of exposure to history.
Most of the social studies endorsed teachers in Alaska have
majored in history, rather than geography or economcs, she
coment ed.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if there will be source materials for
t he teachers.

M5. MENZI said there will be a teacher's guide which will have

the resource materials referenced. It will be provided on CD
and in print.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 24- April 13, 2004



Nunber 0572

CHAI R GATTO commented that he would suspect that in Kansas, for
exanple, nost of their teachers are hired from wthin state
Al aska sinply cannot produce the nunber of teachers needed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reiterated that Amendnent 1 would solve

the two problens he sees with the bill. It renoves the nmandate
for the districts who have not adopted Al aska history as a
requi red subject. He said he also has problens with overriding

the Al aska State Board of Education and this would al so address
t hat .

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gatto, W]I son,
Wl f, and Seaton voted in favor of Amendnent 1. Representatives
Kapsner and Gara voted against it. Therefore, Amendnment 1 was

adopted by a vote of 4-2.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON told the commttee that she believes this
is a very worthwhile course requirenent; however, this is a very
difficult decision because she does not |ike mandates.

CHAIR GATTO told the nenbers that he intends to nmove the bill
out of commttee today.

Nunmber 0850

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER rem nded Representative WIson that this
bill wll be heard in House Health, Education and Social
Services Standing Cormittee next and could be amended there. It

has a long way to go before reaching the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnent.

Nunber 0972

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved Anendnent 2 as fol |l ows:
On page 2, line 16
Del ete "2003"
| nsert "2004"

There bei ng no objection, Arendnent 2 was adopt ed.

Number 1015

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER noved to report HB 84 out of commttee as
anended w th individual reconmendations and the acconpanying

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -25- April 13, 2004



fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 84(EDU) was
reported out of the House Special Comrittee on Educati on.

Nunber 1045

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Committee on Education neeting was adjourned at 12:50
p. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 26- April 13, 2004



